

**SENATE
STATE OF MINNESOTA
SPECIAL SESSION**

S.F. No. 3

(SENATE AUTHORS: BAKK)

DATE
06/14/2021

D-PG

Introduction and first reading
Referred to Finance

OFFICIAL STATUS

1.1 A bill for an act
1.2 relating to capital investment; amending prior appropriations for capital
1.3 improvement projects; refunding deposits to bond issuers on applications for
1.4 bonding authority allocations from the 2020 housing pool; amending Laws 2020,
1.5 Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, sections 16, subdivisions 7, 36; 20,
1.6 subdivision 5; 22, subdivisions 18, 19, 21, 23, 28, 33.

1.7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

1.8 Section 1. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 16, subdivision
1.9 7, is amended to read:

1.10 Subd. 7. **Golden Valley; Douglas Drive and**
1.11 **Highway 55** 6,500,000

1.12 From the bond proceeds account in the state
1.13 transportation fund as provided in Minnesota
1.14 Statutes, section 174.50, for a grant to the city
1.15 of Golden Valley to ~~construct~~ perform
1.16 preliminary and final design engineering,
1.17 environmental analysis, acquisition of
1.18 permanent easements and right-of-way,
1.19 reconstruction, and construction engineering
1.20 of local roads related to construction of public
1.21 safety improvements at and near the
1.22 intersection of Douglas Drive and Highway
1.23 55, including a box culvert underpass across
1.24 Highway 55, a roundabout and extended
1.25 frontage road south of Highway 55, retaining

2.1 wall construction, underground utility
 2.2 relocation, sidewalk and trail connections to
 2.3 existing facilities, Americans with Disabilities
 2.4 Act-compliant facilities, and landscaping.

2.5 EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment.

2.6 Sec. 2. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 16, subdivision 36,
 2.7 is amended to read:

2.8 **Subd. 36. Olmsted County; Trunk Highway 14**
 2.9 **and County Road 104 Interchange Construction** 6,000,000

2.10 For a grant to Olmsted County for the county's
 2.11 share of general obligation bond eligible
 2.12 portions of a project to conduct environmental
 2.13 analysis, predesign, design, and engineer;
 2.14 ~~construct, furnish, and equip~~ an interchange
 2.15 at marked Trunk Highway 14 and County
 2.16 Road 104, including a flyover at 7th Street
 2.17 NW, in ~~Olmsted~~ Olmsted County, and
 2.18 associated infrastructure and road work to
 2.19 accommodate the interchange. Any amount
 2.20 remaining after substantial completion of
 2.21 environmental analysis, predesign, design, and
 2.22 engineering work may be applied to the
 2.23 county's share to acquire right-of-way for, and
 2.24 to construct, furnish, and equip, this
 2.25 interchange and associated infrastructure and
 2.26 road work to accommodate the interchange.

2.27 EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment.

2.28 Sec. 3. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 20, subdivision 5, is
 2.29 amended to read:

2.30 **Subd. 5. Minnesota Correctional Facility - St.**
 2.31 **Cloud** 800,000

2.32 To design, renovate, construct, equip, and
 2.33 install a new fire suppression system in Living

3.1 Units ~~A, B, and C~~ D and E at the Minnesota
 3.2 Correctional Facility - St. Cloud. This
 3.3 installation includes but is not limited to cells,
 3.4 common areas, and control areas and must
 3.5 comply with all applicable codes.

3.6 EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment.

3.7 Sec. 4. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 22, subdivision 18,
 3.8 is amended to read:

3.9 Subd. 18. **Mahnomen; Water Wastewater**
 3.10 **Infrastructure** 650,000

3.11 For a grant ~~under Minnesota Statutes, section~~
 3.12 ~~446A.07~~, to the city of Mahnomen ~~for to~~
 3.13 construct improvements to the city's water
 3.14 wastewater infrastructure. This grant is not
 3.15 subject to the project priority list set forth in
 3.16 ~~Minnesota Statutes, section 446A.07,~~
 3.17 ~~subdivision 4.~~

3.18 EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment.

3.19 Sec. 5. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 22, subdivision 19,
 3.20 is amended to read:

3.21 Subd. 19. **Mahnomen; Drinking Water**
 3.22 **Infrastructure** 1,250,000

3.23 For a grant ~~under Minnesota Statutes, section~~
 3.24 ~~446A.081~~, to the city of Mahnomen ~~for to~~
 3.25 construct improvements to the city's drinking
 3.26 water infrastructure. This grant is not subject
 3.27 to the project priority list set forth in
 3.28 ~~Minnesota Statutes, section 446A.081,~~
 3.29 ~~subdivision 5.~~

3.30 EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment.

4.1 Sec. 6. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 22, subdivision 21,
4.2 is amended to read:

4.3 **Subd. 21. Mendota; Water Infrastructure** 650,000

4.4 For a grant to the city of Mendota to
4.5 predesign, design, engineer, and construct ~~the~~
4.6 ~~extension of improvements to the water main~~
4.7 ~~throughout the city of Mendota to allow~~
4.8 ~~residents to connect with the Saint Paul~~
4.9 ~~Regional Water Services~~ distribution system.

4.10 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

4.11 Sec. 7. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 22, subdivision 23,
4.12 is amended to read:

4.13 **Subd. 23. Oronoco; Regional Wastewater System**
4.14 **Infrastructure Grant** 24,027,000

4.15 (a) Of this amount, \$1,350,000 is for a grant
4.16 to the city of Oronoco to acquire land and
4.17 easements, design, and engineer a wastewater
4.18 collection, conveyance, and treatment system
4.19 and associated water distribution
4.20 improvements to serve the city of Oronoco
4.21 and the region including the Oronoco Estates
4.22 Manufactured Home Community. Any amount
4.23 remaining after completion of design,
4.24 engineering, and acquisition may be applied
4.25 to the purposes described in ~~subdivision 2~~
4.26 paragraph (b).

4.27 (b) Of this amount, \$22,677,000 is for a grant
4.28 to the city of Oronoco to construct and provide
4.29 construction-related engineering for a
4.30 wastewater collection, conveyance, and
4.31 treatment system and associated water
4.32 distribution improvements to serve the city of
4.33 Oronoco and the region including the Oronoco
4.34 Estates Manufactured Home Community.

5.1 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

5.2 Sec. 8. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 22, subdivision 28,
5.3 is amended to read:

5.4 Subd. 28. **South Haven; Wells** 1,700,000

5.5 For a grant to the city of South Haven to
5.6 acquire land, predesign, design, construct,
5.7 furnish, and equip two new wells, including
5.8 a well house, water main, and other related
5.9 drinking water improvements, in Wright
5.10 County.

5.11 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

5.12 Sec. 9. Laws 2020, Fifth Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 22, subdivision 33,
5.13 is amended to read:

5.14 Subd. 33. **Vernon Center; Water Infrastructure**
5.15 **Improvements** 7,984,000

5.16 For a grant to the city of Vernon Center to
5.17 predesign, design, construct, furnish, and
5.18 equip water ~~infrastructure improvements,~~
5.19 ~~including refurbishing a water tower, and~~
5.20 ~~replacement of wastewater collection and~~ and
5.21 wastewater treatment facilities, water
5.22 distribution systems, sanitary sewer, and storm
5.23 ~~sewer system improvements~~ water collection
5.24 systems, and related local road improvements.

5.25 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

5.26 Sec. 10. **HOUSING POOL BONDING AUTHORITY APPLICATION DEPOSIT**
5.27 **REFUND.**

5.28 Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, sections 474A.061, subdivisions 1a, paragraph (a),
5.29 and 7; and 474A.21, due to the unique circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic, issuers
5.30 that returned all of their allocation of bonding authority from the 2020 housing pool, shall
5.31 receive a refund of the amount of the application deposit submitted with the issuer's 2020
5.32 housing pool application, less any amount previously refunded. Any application deposit

6.1 money that has not yet been transferred under Minnesota Statutes, section 474A.21, as of
6.2 the date of final enactment that is connected to full returns of bonding authority from the
6.3 2020 housing pool is not required to be deposited in the fund under Minnesota Statutes,
6.4 section 462A.201; and the department may instead retain that money in the separate account
6.5 in the general fund under Minnesota Statutes, section 474A.21. The amount necessary to
6.6 refund the application deposits under this section is appropriated to the department from
6.7 the separate account in the general fund under Minnesota Statutes, section 474A.21. For
6.8 purposes of this section, "department" means the Department of Management and Budget.

6.9 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.